
 
 PRELIMINARY AGENDA  

REGULAR SESSION 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial 

Monday, November 4, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 10/21/2013 Council meeting 

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda 
may be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  
You are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, 
only your name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.)   

 
6. PRESENTATION: 

A. Proclamation of thanks to Eagle Scouts for the Wascoe Street Project. 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Receive comment and discussion of parking issues on Pacific Street between 
Main Street and Meadow Drive. 

B. Adoption of Resolution No. 1804 permanently suspending the business 
license set up fee and waiving first year business license fee 

C. Review of City costs for Police Reserve Program 
D. Adoption of Resolution No. 1805 authorizing the purchase of gift certificates 

for employees for Thanksgiving and Christmas 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion and approval of specific draft city policies from number 104-203 
B. Discussion of property acquisition for water tank site 

 
 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 33



10. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

A. None Scheduled. 
 

SECOND READING: 
B.  None Scheduled. 

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the City Manager, Public Works Director, Police 

Chief, and Library Director 
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on 
meetings attended this past month and other items. 

 
B. November 2013 Council Calendar 
 

13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Monday, November 11: Veteran’s Day—City Offices and Library Closed 

 Saturday, November 16: North Plains Senior Center Holiday Bazaar at the 
Senior Center: 9:00-3:00 

 Saturday, November 23: Dance at Jessie Mays at 7:30 p.m. 

 Sunday, November 24: Playdate at Jessie Mays from 1:30 to 4:00 p.m. 

 November 28 & 29: Thanksgiving Holiday—City Offices and Library Closed 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT:  
 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will 
also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other 
services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please 
call City Hall at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 

City Council Meetings are normally scheduled to be held at the North Plains Senior Center. 
They will be held at 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon, on the following 

dates at 7:00 p.m.: 

 
Monday, November 18, 2013 Monday, December 2, 2013 Monday, December 
16, 2013 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 2 of 33



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial  

Monday, October 21, 2013  
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the meeting to order at 7:00 

p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher conducted the flag salute 
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Council President Teri Lenahan; 

Councilors: Glen Warren, Michael Demagalski, Charlynn Newton, and Robert 
Kindel, Jr. 
 
Excused: Councilor Broome 
 
Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Chief of Police Bill Snyder, Public 
Works Director Blake Boyles, Deputy City Recorder Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 10/07/2013 Council meeting 

Motion by Warren. Seconded by Demagalski to approve the Consent Agenda.  The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
Lincoln Israel, 10205 NW Curtis Street, presented a petition to Council signed by the 
residents who live on Curtis Street.  The petition is asking the City to place a safety 
barrier between the old and new sections of Curtis Street. They were asking this to 
be installed primarily for safety reasons.  They do not want to see an increase in 
vehicular traffic on their street. They don’t want to lose the dynamic their 
neighborhood has established. There is already a premium for parking and they 
would prefer not to fight for space with additional vehicles from the new development.   
 
6. PRESENTATION: 

Swearing in of Reserve Police Officer Todd Duncan 
 
Chief Snyder introduced our newest Reserve Police Officer to the Council. Officer 
Duncan has over 40 years of experience and is now going to dedicate his time to the 
City of North Plains.  Snyder performed the swearing in of Officer Duncan. 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 3 of 33



 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Consider waiving fees for Holiday Jingle and Elephant Garlic Festival. 
B. Consider waiving fees for the use of Jessie Mays Community Hall by the 

North Plains Community Garden Club. 
C. Consider waiving fees for the use of Jessie Mays for the North Plains 

Senior Center Crab Feed fundraiser on January 18, 2014. 
 
Mayor Hatcher noted that items 8A, 8B, and 8C were all considerations of waiving 
fees for the use of Jessie Mays. He asked Council if they could agree to approve the 
three items in one motion. 
 
Lenahan had a consideration to address before agreeing to one motion. She stated 
that the North Plains Events Association is not an organization that raises funds for 
events as stated in the staff report. She wanted this to be clarified in case someone 
were to see the staff report think fundraising was one of their tasks. It is so noted. 
 
Motion by Demagalski. Seconded by Warren to approve the waiver of fees for 
Agenda Items 8A through 8C.  The motion was approved unanimously. 
  

D. Discussion of street naming policy in new developments and with renaming 
of streets 

 
Council was presented with a broad list of categories of street naming suggestions 
that could be deferred to developers for new subdivisions. DeBry was hoping to get a 
pool of names started and then add to it periodically.  Council agreed that this is good 
start for a street naming policy but would like to see a bit more historical background 
for the names submitted before making a decision. Hatcher stated he would like to 
see consistency in streets vs. avenues for north/south or east/west designations. 
Councilors who have additional suggestions may submit these names to DeBry and 
she will forward to Council at the next meeting.   
 

E. Approval of Resolution No. 1803 Suspending Charges for Fee In Lieu of 
Construction of Street Improvements 

 
DeBry presented the staff report. The Fee in Lieu has been temporary suspended 
since 4/14/13. During this suspension the City has experienced an increase in 
requests for infill building permits for residences. The mechanism we have in place 
with this Fee in Lieu has not fulfilled its original purpose of ensuring the improvement 
of public streets. Property owners paying the fee do not see the improvements to 
their properties. Staff would like to see this Fee in Lieu permanently suspended. 
There are other options that are available to collect funds for street improvements. 
Discussion ensued.  The Code requires curb, gutters, sidewalks and street 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 4 of 33



improvements as a condition of approval for new infill development. An alternative 
mechanism for collecting the funds for street improvements could be to put a lien on 
the properties affected when a street improvement project is actually undertaken. 
Lenahan stated that property owners should all be made aware that they are 
responsible for street improvements in front of their property. 
 
Motion by Demagalski. Seconded by Warren to adopt Resolution Number 1803 
permanently suspending charges for Fee in Lieu of construction of street 
improvements.  The motion was approved by a 5/1 split with Lenahan voting 
opposed. 
 

F. Discussion and decision of specific draft City Policies 
 
The draft city policies were distributed at the 9/16/13 council meeting.  Council was 
asked to review this packet of material for approval at the 10/21/13 meeting.  DeBry 
presented her suggestion on how to proceed with the process of approving these 
policies. Lenahan suggested they start from the beginning of the list and work on 
about ten polices at each Council meeting for the next few months. Hard copies of 
the policies will be made available to the Councilors who would like to work on them 
that way. Councilors will be notified which policies will be looked at on November 4, 
2013.  
 

G. Review of September Check Register 
 
Council reviewed the September Check Register.  No action was taken as this item 
was informational only. 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. None Scheduled 
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  
 FIRST READING:   

A. None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
B. None Scheduled 

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
 
DeBry reported on the Wascoe street park project the Eagle Scouts have been 
working on. They have added two new benches with planter boxes.  They also 
removed all the debris from removing the fencing and the old safety barrier. They will 
be earning their merit badge with the completion of this project. Boyles stated that we 
will need to add some Do Not Enter signs and other type of reflective barrier to 
prevent vehicles from trying to enter this little neighborhood park. 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 5 of 33



 
The Pumpkin Fun Run is scheduled for this coming Saturday, October 26. There are 
62 entries for the Run at this point in time. We are anticipating more entries the day of 
the race. Recology has donated the mini pumpkins for the pumpkin launching 
contest. Staff did a test run with the slingshots at Jessie Mays and they work well. 
The costume parade will start at 11:30 a.m.  The staging area is at Kaybern and Main 
Streets. 
 
Boyles reported on the Claxtar Street project. It is nearing completion.  Also, Boyles 
met with ODOT regarding the tunnel project that coincides with the walking trail.  
ODOT has drawn up three concepts for the tunnel. Boyles will be attending a seminar 
on Wednesday and Thursday that covers post-earthquake training which will provide 
ideas to speed up restoration after an incident. 
 
Chief Snyder reported he and Officer Thurber spent two days at firearms training last 
week.  They are also preparing for the Pumpkin Fun Run event on the 26th.  Snyder 
also stated that the department will be entering the busy time of training in the next 
few months. He has a seminar coming up on major incidents at schools. 
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
Mayor Report: 
Hatcher mentioned the gift certificates that Council has awarded staff in past years 
for the Thanksgiving and Christmas holidays. He requested approval of these gift 
certificates be an agenda item at the next meeting. 
 
Hatcher reported that he had DeBry compose a letter that would begin the process of 
moving all the intellectual property surrounding the Elephant Garlic Festival from the 
North Plains Chamber of Commerce to the City of North Plains.  He stated they are 
working on a press release that we are moving forward with the North Plains 
Elephant Garlic Festival to a new phase where things are coming together the way 
they should be. Contacts are being made with the different groups who have been 
involved with the festivals in past years. 
 
Council Reports: 
Lenahan brought up the congestion issues on Pacific Street between Main Street and 
Meadow Drive. She said people are almost getting hit with vehicles being parked 
along the narrow street and visibility being poor.  She is concerned because a new 
seven home development is going in to add to the mix.  Council asked that this be 
added as a discussion item on the next agenda. 
 
Warren mentioned the corner at the west end of Highland Court is becoming an issue 
where a semi-trailer is being parked near the road barrier. 
 
Warren reported he is meeting with the pastor of Evergreen Christian Church on 
Tuesday and will be making a decision on the skate park equipment. 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 6 of 33



 
13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Saturday, October 26: North Plains Pumpkin Fun Run, from 7:00 a.m. with 
the pumpkin pancake breakfast at the Senior Center then events 
throughout the day at Jessie Mays Community Hall. (See NPFun.org for 
details) 

 Thursday, October 31, Halloween Treats at the library starting at 11:00 
a.m. 

 Monday, November 11: Veteran’s Day—City Offices and Library Closed 

 Saturday, November 16: North Plains Senior Center Holiday Bazaar at the 
Senior Center: 9:00-3:00  

 Thursday and Friday, November 28 & 29: Thanksgiving Holiday—City 
Offices and Library Closed 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting at 8:47 p.m. 
 

 
 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________ Date approved __________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, Deputy Recorder 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 7 of 33



City of North Plains 
Oregon 

Proclamation 
 

WHEREAS, Eagle Scout candidate Logan Miller and Scout Master 

Mitchell Couch presented a proposal to the Parks Advisory Committee at their 

February 27, 2013 meeting and to the North Plains City Council on March 4, 

2013 to organize a project for Logan to earn his project merit badge; and 

 

WHEREAS, the scope of the project grew and Eagle Scout candidate 

Carson Miller joined in the planning process for the project to earn his merit 

badge; and  

 

WHEREAS, Eagle Scouts Logan Miller and Carson Miller coordinated 

the materials and a work crew and began work on the project over Labor Day 

weekend; and 

  

WHEREAS, the project was completed on October 12, 2013 with the 

addition of benches and planters; and 

 

WHEREAS, this project created a beautiful pedestrian park within the 

right-of-way at Wascoe Street and Main Street in North Plains. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

North Plains, Oregon do hereby acknowledge this great accomplishment and 

thank brothers Logan and Carson Miller for their service to the North Plains 

Community. 

 

Given unto my hand this 4th day of November, 2013. 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

David Hatcher 

Mayor __________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 8 of 33



 

Agenda Item 8A   

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   October 24, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion of Pacific Street Congestion 

 
Request:   Council discuss issue presented regarding congestion on Pacific Street. 
 
Background:  At recent Council meetings, concern has been expressed about 
congestion on Pacific Street near 317th.  Specifically the parking of boats, recreation 
vehicles and automobiles which narrows the street.   
 

 

Picture 1 View Pacific west near 317th                                                  Picture 2 Pacific west of Meadow 

An agenda item was requested by Councilor Lenahan at the October 21, 2013 meeting.  
A notice has been prepared for residents within 500 feet of the area to request their 
comments on the conditions of Pacific Street.  A copy is attached. 
 
The Police Department has observed the area on several occasions in response to 
requests of the Planning Commission and Council.  They did not see a safety hazard.  
There are no reported accidents in the area.  Police staff did ask residents to consider 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 9 of 33



moving the boats and RV’s off the street.  It is not practical to cite the owners as the 
vehicles are parked legally.     
 
One of the concerns expressed was that the City’s walking trail plan encourages 
pedestrian traffic on Pacific Street.  The map below shows the route which uses Pacific 
and 320st.  Pedestrians can use the sidewalks on the southern side of the street from 
Main to 320th/Meadow for this purpose.  Portions of the sidewalk are in place on the 
northern side of the street.  Staff anticipates the sidewalk between 320th and 317th will 
be completed this summer as a new subdivision and additional homes are constructed.  
 

 
 
Suggestions have been made that areas along Pacific Street should have “no parking” 
postings.  The decision to allow parking is within the purview of the local agency.  No 
traffic study is required.   On local streets, parking is normally only restricted within 
“skinny” 46 ft right of way (ROW).  Pacific has a 60 foot ROW, and total travel lane width 
varies from 24 feet to 28 feet (Local lane widths should be between 9-12 feet according 
to AASHTO).  The most narrow points are near 317th between 31777 and 31711 Pacific 
Street.  There is no accident history to suggest extraordinary sight distance issues exist. 
 
Generally, parking has a calming effect on a street as drivers tend to watch for vehicle 
movement and streets appear more narrow.  Adding no parking signs to one or both 
sides of Pacific Avenue may result in higher average speeds along the road.  On local 
streets, the constriction to one travel lane caused by parking typically slows speeds 
within a neighborhood.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  Discussion of Pacific Street has no direct fiscal impact.   
 
Recommendation:  No recommendation item is for discussion only.  
 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 10 of 33



Notice to Property Owners and Residents 

The City Council of the City of North Plains will be discussing  

Pacific Street congestion issues at the  

November 4, 2013 meeting 

7:00 p.m 

North Plains Senior Center, 31450 NW Commercial Street 

Among the topics of discussion will be restricting parking on Pacific Street in the area between Main 

Street and Meadow.  The Council is in the process of gathering information following receipt of several 

complaints about congestion in the area.  No specific project or set of actions are proposed at this time. 

Residents are encouraged to attend the discussion or submit comments in writing by email to 

martha@northplains.org or City Hall 31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, OR 97133.  This form 

can be used to submit comments. 

 

Name:  ___________________________  Address: ___________________________________________ 

General preference:  Prefer some modifications of street ___  Prefer no modification of street ____ 

Comments: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 11 of 33

mailto:martha@northplains.org


 

Agenda Item No. 8B 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   October 22, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry, City Manager 

Subject: Consider adoption of Resolution No. 1804 Permanently Suspending the 

Business License Set Up Fee and Waiving First Year Business License Fee 

Request:  Council adopt Resolution No. 1804 permanently suspending the business 
license set up fee and waiving the first year business license fee. 
 
Background:  On October 13, 2011 Council approved a package of incentives to 
encourage business development within the City. 
 
In keeping with City Council’s 2011-2012 Goal #10 “Encourage economic development 
planning.”  Staff developed options to encourage business growth in the community. 
The fee and permit structure at the time appeared to discourage businesses from 
locating in North Plains.  Over the past year, the City has been able to improve the 
perception that the City is unfriendly to new business. 
 
The temporary reductions approved with Resolution No. 1685 will expire on December 
31, 2013. 
 
The table below updates the fees and recommendations for incentives: 
 

Fee Category Fee 
Prior 

Incentive 
Incentive Purpose in 

2011 
2013 

Recommendation 

New business 
license set up 
fee 

$70.00 Waive fee Encourage application 
for permits by reducing 
first year cost.  Fee is 
in excess of actual 
costs. 

Eliminate fee as 
true cost is 
nominal. 

Annual 
Business 
License Fee 
 
 
 

 

$50.00 Waive fee 
for first 
year. 

Encourage application 
for permits by reducing 
first year cost.  Fee is 
intended to be revenue 
raising for the City.   

Continue first year 
waiver.  Loss of 
revenue has been 
offset by improved 
relations with 
business 
community. 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 12 of 33



Fee Category Fee 
Prior 

Incentive 
Incentive Purpose in 

2011 
2013 

Recommendation 

Sign Permit – 
New and 
Replacement 

$150.00 
and $75.00 

Reduce 
fee to 
$30.00 for 
both 

Recovers City costs 
only.   

No waiver.  Fee 
reduced last year. 

Design Review 
 
(Note process 
is being 
evaluated to be 
more 
streamline.) 

$3,400.00 
Deposit 
plus actual 
costs if they 
exceed 
initial fee. 

Waive 75% 
of fee up to 
$2,000.00. 

Design review cost 
structure is lower now 
with hiring of Assistant 
Planner and City 
Manager. 

No waiver.  Fee 
reduced last year.  

Mechanical 
Permit 

$75.00 Reduce 
fee to 
$25.00 

Recover City costs for 
verifying setbacks. 

No waiver.  Fee 
reduced. 

Building Permit 
– Remodel 
Alteration 
(Forms have been 
revised to 
expedite reviews.) 

$250.00 Reduce 
fee to 
$50.00 

Recover City costs 
only. 

No waiver.  Fee 
reduced. 

Building Permit 
– New 
Construction 
(Forms have been 
revised to 
expedite reviews.) 

$500.00 Reduce 
fee to 
$50.00 

Recover City costs. No waiver.  Fee 
reduced. 

Similar Use 
Determination 

$900.00 Waive fee Determinations are 
unlikely to be needed 
with adoption of new 
Municipal Code Zoning 
and Development 
Standards. 

No waiver.  Fee 
reduced. 

System 
Development 
Charges 
(SDC’s) – 
Transportation/
Street Water  

Transportati
on/Street – 
Based on 
trip 
generation 
per use 
 
Water – 
Based on 
meter size 
installed 

Finance 
water and 
street fees 
under 
$10,000 up 
to 3 years, 
and over 
$10,000 
and under 
$100,000 
up to 5 
years. 

Encourage 
development by 
allowing financing of 
fees. 

Option has not 
been used in past 
year.  State law 
requires financing 
under certain 
circumstances.  

  

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 13 of 33



In summary, staff is proposing restoring all fees except the business license set-up 
which can be eliminated, and business license fee waiver for first year.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  Most fees are set at a level to fully recover costs, and updated annually.  
The business license is only for revenue generation.  About 4-10 new licenses are 
expected this year.  The new effect is somewhere between $480-$1,200.  Streamlined 
business practices have made the process more efficient. 
 
Sample Motion:  Adopt Resolution No. 1804 permanently eliminating the business 
license set-up fee and continuing the business license waiver for the first year.  

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 14 of 33



 RESOLUTION NO. 1804 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, PERMENENTLY SUSPENDING THE BUSINESS LICENSE SET UP FEE 

AND WAIVING FIRST YEAR BUSINESS LICENSE FEE 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Plains strives to have a healthy balance of 
residential, commercial and industrial activity to ensure a high quality of life within the 
community; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the economic downturn that began in 2007 continues to have a 
negative effect on local businesses and the City wishes to encourage economic 
development in the City; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City wants to retain and encourage expansion of existing 
businesses; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 1685 to provide some incentives to 
businesses to ease the cost of starting operations in North Plains; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has revised many of its fees in the interim period. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, the Business License Fee is waived for first 
time applicants until a separate action is adopted by Council; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Business License Set Up fee is 

permanently suspended.  
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of November, 2013. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 15 of 33



 

Agenda Item No: 8C  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  November 4, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Police Chief Bill Snyder 

Subject: City Costs for Police Reserve Program 

Request:  Receive report regarding costs associated with reserve program. 
 
Background: Council had asked for detailed information on reserve officer costs. The 
table below compares costs and discusses grant revenue.  Police “shared costs” are 
those costs that full time, part time, and reserve officers share, such as vehicle fuel, 
uniforms, and supplies.         
 
The City benefits from the volunteer hours donated by reserve officers.  At a bare 
minimum officers are required to volunteer 16 hours a month.  A simple calculation of 
six reserve officers donating 16 hours a month for one year equals 1,152 hours (roughly 
0.55 full time equivalent.) Officers often volunteer more than 16 hours a month.   
 
Reserves are paid for some assignments.  Funds for payroll and related taxes have 
been budgeted for reserves, however historically we have not used all monies budgeted 
to pay reserves on an annual basis.  Assignments for which reserves are paid include 
ODOT grant traffic patrols, vacation coverage and scheduled events like the Garlic 
Festival or Fourth of July.   
 
Funds are budgeted to outfit reserves in uniforms and equipment.  A standard uniform 
includes shirts (short and long sleeve), trousers, boots, belt/suspenders, hat, jacket and 
rain gear.  Additionally some police t-shirts are provided.  Personal protective equipment 
required for each officer includes a bullet-proof vest and holster(s).  Standard equipment 
assigned to each officer is a handgun, baton, magazine cases, handcuffs, pepper spray, 
and protective gloves. Uniforms are replaced as they become worn or damaged.  For 
reserves a uniform and bullet-proof vest can last several years.  A gun for reserve will 
last longer than for an officer.  Experienced reserves often bring their own belt and 
related equipment.   
 
All officers share four vehicles.  Our current vehicle numbers are designed to allow a 
shift of officers during city events to each have access to a vehicle.  Without reserves, 
the City would still need a minimum of three vehicles to allow full-time employees 
access to a vehicle when on-call and active shift personnel to patrol.   

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 16 of 33



 
 
Revenue: Full time and reserve officers generate some revenues through the issuance 
of citations though the City does not rely on this revenue to fund police operations. 
 
Funds are also provided through two grants issued by ODOT. The ODOT grant for the 
overpass on Glencoe Road is set to end in the spring of 2014.  The ODOT grant for the 
overpass at Brookwood is set to end in the summer of 2015.  Grant hours provide 
incentives to all officers to work additional hours, which supplements the standard level 
of service provided to residents. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Report has no fiscal impact.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues related to report.  
 
Sample Motion:  None as item is for discussion only. 
 
Attachments:  Police Cost Table 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 17 of 33



City of North Plains - Cost of Reserve Officers 
 

 FY14 Estimate FY14 Budget FY13 FY12 

     

 ODOT grant  
                   

32,000                    9,000              9,300                     -    

 Total Revenue  
                   

32,000                    9,000              9,300                     -    
     

Payroll and taxes  
                   

35,664                 11,145           37,811           16,588  

Police Reserves shared costs 
                   

30,265                 30,265           21,735              9,292  

     

 Total Expense  
                   

65,929                 41,410           59,545           25,880  

     

 Net Cost  
                

(33,929)              (32,410)        (50,245)        (25,880) 
     
 Notes:       

 Additional paid shifts for ODOT coverage started in FY13.     

 Part time officer beginning in FY14 will reduce paid reserve hours.     

 Shared costs:       

 Leases / Repairs  
                   

35,132                 35,132           34,876           25,222  

 Supplies / Equipment  
                   

20,000                 20,000           19,845           17,927  

 Uniforms  
                     

4,500                    4,500              3,492              5,626  

 Fuel  
                   

12,500                 12,500           13,718           14,181  

 Total shared costs  
                   

72,132                 72,132           71,931           62,956  

     

 Police Officers hours  
                     

5,720                    5,720              4,160              4,160  
 Police Reserves hours 

(paid and volunteer)  
                     

2,400                    2,400              1,257                 614  

 Police Reserves shared costs  
                   

30,265                 30,265           21,735              9,292  

 Volunteer hours      

 Hours  
                     

1,200                    1,200              1,153                 600  

 Approximate value  
                   

28,308                 28,308           24,663           12,834  

 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 18 of 33



 

Agenda Item No: 8D  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 25, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Gift Certificates to Paid Staff for Holidays 

Request:  Adopt Resolution No.1805 approving of purchase of gift certificates for 
employee holiday gifts.  
 
Background:   Annually the Council approves the purchase of $25.00 gift certificates 

from Fred Meyers for employees for the Thanksgiving and Christmas holidays. These 

gift certificates are budgeted from City Council 610-411-500000 “Employee recognition” 

to pay for the gift certificates to the employees in said department.  Cards are provided 

to all full-time and part-time employees and reserve officers who are employed the day 

prior to each holiday. 

Fiscal Impact:   This year $900 was budgeted for the certificates. Currently the City has 
28 employees on payroll, the actual cost is projected at $1,400 for $25 each on 
Thanksgiving and Christmas. 
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues associated with this item. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve distribution of gift cards for Thanksgiving and Christmas. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to approve Resolution No.1805 approving the purchase and 
distribution of gift certificates to employees.  
 
 
Attachment – Resolution 
 
  

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 19 of 33



List of Employees 10/29/13 
 

1 Martha DeBry City Manager 

2 Marrina Abeln Finance 

3 Sarah Baker Finance 

4 Rachael Lembo Finance 

5 Margaret Reh Finance 

6 Pam Smith Finance 

7 Sierra White Finance 

8 Carol Aldrich Library 

9 Debbie Brodie Library 

10 Heidi Fuiten Library 

11 Larissa Hammond Library 

12 Donna Medica Library 

13 Sheila Nelson Library 

14 Sam Ramirez Library 

15 Jackie Welch Library 

16 Jessie Baker Police 

17 Josh Brown Police 

18 Todd Duncan Police 

19 Sam Freshner Police 

20 Ryan Olman Police 

21 Jody Peterson Police 

22 Jeremy Pollard Police 

23 Bill Snyder Police 

24 Tim Thurber Police 

25 Blake Boyles Public Works 

26 Ben Duyck Public Works 

27 Charles Rodgers Public Works 

28 Mike Schoelich Public Works 

 
28 x $25 = $700 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 20 of 33



RESOLUTION NUMBER 1805 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF GIFT CERTIFICATES FOR 

EMPLOYEE HOLIDAY GIFTS 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Plains annually approves the 
purchase of $25.00 gift certificates purchased from Fred Meyer; and  
 
 WHEREAS, these gift certificates are purchased for employees for the 
Thanksgiving and Christmas holidays; and 
 

WHEREAS, all full-time and part-time employees and reserve officers who are 
employed the day prior to each holiday are the recipients of these gift certificates; and 
 
 WHEREAS, funds are budgeted from the City Council line item for “Employee 
Recognition. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  Section 1. Approves the purchase of $25 gift cards for paid staff. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of November, 2013. 
 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 21 of 33



 

Agenda Item No: 9A    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 24, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Approval of city policies 104-203 

Request:  Council approve policies 104-203 
 
Background:   The draft policy manual was distributed at the 9/16/13 council meeting.   
 
To manage the workload of the reviewing ordinance Council directed that batches of 
policies be presented at a series of meetings. 
 
Policies to be approved on November 4, 2013 are: 
104 Banner Policy 
105 Park naming 
106 Surplus property 
110 Disruptive conduct 
130 Fixed Asset 
140 Community Garden 
150 Street Names 
170 Address assignments 
190 Wellness 
202 Recruitment 
203 Background checks 
 
All policies are as previously distributed to Council, with the exception of a modified list 
for the pool of street names which is attached. 
  
Fiscal Impact:   Review and adoption of the policies has no direct fiscal impact.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  I moved to approve policies 104-203. 
 
Attachment – Street Name Pool List  
 
These draft policy packets were distributed at the 9/16/13 meeting and can be reviewed 
from the City Council Packet posted on-line at 
http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Committees/City_Council/Agenda_Rep
ort_Documents/2013/091613%20COUNCIL%20PACKET.pdf 
 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 22 of 33

http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Committees/City_Council/Agenda_Report_Documents/2013/091613%20COUNCIL%20PACKET.pdf
http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Committees/City_Council/Agenda_Report_Documents/2013/091613%20COUNCIL%20PACKET.pdf


Street Name Pool October 2013 
 
Historical Family Names 
 

List of families associated with North Plains.  Information culled from Ancestry.com database.  
Families that appeared for three census cycles (30 years) are listed by first census date.  (Census 
prior to 1920 do not cite North Plains.  Most classified as rural Washington, Oregon) 
 
Baker Appear 1920 census 

Bantz Appear 1920 census 

Beach Appear 1920 census 

Blake Appear 1930 census 

Bunger 1900 census, 1940 census 

Bunke Appear 1920 census 

Carey Appear 1920 census 

Carver 1900 & 1940 census 

Chamberlain In use 

Christener Swiss immigrants appear in 1910 census.  Owners of hotel and meat 
market served railroad crews 

Clark First barber 

Conklin Charles Conklin buried 3/22/1883 in North Plains appear in 1920 
census 

Cornelius Appear 1920 census, Class of 33 

Cox Part of Cypher and Mays families worked at Mays Bro. 

Cropp Victor Cropp buried 1867 in North Plains 1920 census 

Cypher First Councilor Lester 

Davis Florence Davis buried 1894 in North Plains family appears in 1920 
census 

DeFreeze Owners of mill and feed strore 

Dicke Owner of brick yard in 1900’s 

Dobbins John Dobbins buried 12/9/1872 in North Plains.  Related to 
Vandomelen family. 

Fair Appear 1920 census 

Fields Appear 1940 census 

Fowler Founded first store in Glencoe 

Garwood Appear 1920 census 

Flemmons ? Cannot find record 

Gordon Appear 1930 census 

Grenier Appear 1920 census 

Grimes First baker 

Harms Appear 1920 census 

Hartley Birth announcements 1883, 1920 census 

Haudegard Pictured on website 1913 – No other record found 

Hendrickson Appear 1920 census 

Hess Appear 1920 census 

Hill Appear in 1940 census in area 

Hollenbeck Bazel Hollenbeck buried 5/4/1921 in NP, appear in 1940 census 

Hundley Appear 1920 census 

Hunter Boarding house owner Kaybern and Main 
__________________________ 

City Council Packet 
Monday, November 4, 2013 

Page 23 of 33



Ireland Appear in 1870 census in area pictured on website in 1913, owned 
Mays Bros 1920-25 

Jacky Appear in 1920 Census  

Jacobson Telephone operator 

James Clerk during incorporation 

Joss Appear 1920 census 

Jossy Appear 1900 census in WA county 

Kahle Appear 1920 and later in Verboort 

Keenon First Councilor Harold, Richard Keenon buried 6/12/1923  

Kelly George Kelly buried 10/28/1916, Alvin 1887 

Kennedy Appear 1920 census 

King Appear 1920 census 

Langue Appear 1920 census and class of 33 

Lee Appear 1920 census 

Lewis Lewis and Clark explorers 

Lincoln Appear 1900 census in area 

Loftis Appear 1920 census 

Martin Appear 1920 census 

Mays Owners of Mays mercantile 

McCuen Pictured in 1933 

McCumsey 

 
McNew Appear in 1920 census 

Meek Appear in 1920 census, state legislator 

Meyer Appear in 1920 census 

Miller Appear 1940 census 

Millet Appear 1920 census, class of 33 

Mills Appear 1920 census 

Milne Appear 1920 census 

Murphy Appear 1930 census 

Moon Appear 1920 census 

Moore Appear 1920 census 

Northrup Appear 1920 census 

Offidal First doctor in town 

Ould First Councilor Cliff 

Provis First Councilor Mrs. William 

Reese Appear 1940 census 

Reynolds Appear 1920 census, owned feed mill 

Robb 

 
Rossback Appear 1920 census 

Rufer Appear 1920 census __________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 24 of 33



Ruth Owner of feed mill 1950 

Schoenberg Julius partner in Mays Bros pictured on website 

Shaddon Pool hall and tavern owner, 1920 census 

Sipp Appear 1920 census 

Schaer Appear 1920 census 

Smith Appear 1920 census 

Schlaefli Appear 1920 census, class of 33 

Stafford Dr. and owner of store in old Glencoe 

Stewart Blanch Stewart first hair dresser 

Strauss Appear 1920 Census 

Sumner Telephone operator 

Sutherland Appear 1920 census 

Theis Mayor Ralph 

Tompkins Appear 1920 census 

Thompson Appear 1920 census 

Townsend Appear 1920 census 

Tucker Appear 1920 census 

Truitt Appear 1920 

Troutman Appear 1920 census Postmaster 1914, market owner 

Vandehey Appear 1900 census in area 

VanDomelen Appear 1920 census 

VanDyck Mill owners since 1950’s 

Volpp Appear 1940 census 

Walter Appear 1900 census 

Wing Property owners 

Wirtz Appear 1920 census 

White Appear 1920 census 

Wright Appear 1920 census 

 
Mayors 

Cook James Olson 

Drexel Kent Riley 

Frace Kindel Sandford 

Hatcher MacLeod Theis 

Hirst 
 

Vanderzanden 

 

Parade Marshals 
Kaye (1930 Census)  

 
Process to add names to pool: 
City Council shall approve a list of street names which may be used in North Plains. If anyone 
wishes to have an additional family name considered, he or she should prepare a letter to the 
City Council which provides the name and a brief explanation of the family’s local heritage.  
Such requests shall be considered at regular meetings of the City Council within 60 days of 
receipt by the City Recorder. 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 25 of 33



 

Agenda Item No: 9B    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 25, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Property acquisition for water tank site 

Request:  Council provide more specific direction regarding the purchase of property 
for a water tank site. 
 
Background:  City staff has been scouting for properties which can host a future water 
tank site location.  Public Works seeks a site that can accommodate the relocation of 
vehicles, equipment and supplies.  Eventually the entire department would be moved 
away from City Hall, which abuts a residential neighborhood.  
 
At this time the search has narrowed to three properties in the east industrial area: 
 

Property Asking Price Acres Building 

Protoco $249,000 1.0 NA 

VanDomelen $730,000 3.0 NA 

OSP Building $3,500,000 7.5 45,000 sq ft 

 
While evaluating properties staff sees the potential for some larger properties to 
accommodate other City needs including park land, and a recreation facility.  
 
All three parcels have been for sale for extended period of time, and there is no reason 
to believe that the City must rush into making an offer.   
 
Fiscal Impact:   All three properties are within the City’s financial reach using different 
financial instruments.  Below is a matrix of how the properties can be acquired.  Loans 
can include conventional bank loans or loans from the State infrastructure fund. A bond 
can be configured in a variety of ways depending on the proposed use of the property 
and other needs identified by the City.  
  

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 26 of 33



Property Cash Loan(s) Bond 

Protoco X   

VanDomelen X X (X)* 

OSP (X) X X 

 
The sources for funding would include: 
 

Property Water Street General Fund Park SDC TDT/TIF 

Protoco x (x) (x)  x 

VanDomelen x x x (x) x 

OSP x x x x x 

 
The share of each funds’ cost would vary based on the land and improvements used for 
a purpose.  For example, if the Protoco property were purchased, it would likely be 
funded almost entirely by water.  Some funding may be allocated from the general fund 
or street fund if it is determined that a portion of the property would be used for Public 
Works purposes which are split 50% water / 25% general fund / 25% street.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to direct staff to pursue looking into options. 
 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 27 of 33



City of North Plains 
Police Department  

10/30/13 
 
TO:               Martha DeBry, City 

Manager     
  City Council      
  Department Heads 
 
FROM: Bill Snyder, Police Chief 
           
SUBJ.: DEPARTMENT REPORT   
     
Officers were involved in several training events in October.  Collaborations are under way with 
other Washington County police agencies for emergency planning regarding schools.    
 
The following are the numbers regarding criminal reports/activity for October: 
 
 
 

 2013 

Activity Oct 

DUII 2 

Traffic crash 3 

Harassment 1 

Interfering arrest   0 

Assist agency 5 

Forgery I 1 

Dog Bite/Animal Comp 1 

Burglary  0 

Violation Release arrest  0 

Theft 6 

Hit and Run 0 

Found Property 2 

Assault 0 

Animal complaint 0 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 28 of 33



__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 29 of 33



    City of North Plains 

Public Works Department 

10/30/2013 

TO:   Martha DeBry, City Manager 

  City Council 

  Department Heads 

FROM:  Blake Boyles, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT  

 

 CDBG Project Management –NW Claxtar St –Storm, curb and sidewalk coordination. Punch list 

 Construction coordination with ODOT on interchange/ pedestrian trail working designs 

 East side reservoir cost evaluation, possible real estate property locations 

 Highland Ct Subdivision coordination 

 Street light installation 

 Emergency Management planning 

 New subdivision plan review 

Public Works Crews are working on the following projects/tasks: 

 Hydrant flushing 

 Valve maintenance 

 Monthly meter reading 

 Equipment Maintenance  

 Building Maintenance 

 Claxtar St Project inspection 

 Mowing of Parks  

 Cross Connection  

 Locates 

 2” water service installation 

 Sign installation 

 Bench installation for Garden Club 

 Event clean-up 

 

 

 

Future reports will include tasks accomplished and those pending. If there is any other information you may 

want to see in the report, please let me know.- 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 30 of 33



City of North Plains - Library Department - November 4 – December 2, 2013 
 
TO: Martha DeBry, City Manager, and to City Council Members 
FROM: Debbie Brodie, Library Director 
SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
Cover Oregon Informational Meetings.  Oregon’s health insurance marketplace, Cover Oregon, is a 
resource for citizens who are seeking affordable health insurance or assistance in obtaining insurance.  
Oregonians will be able to compare and enroll in health and dental coverage that fits their needs and budget, 
and to access financial help to pay for their coverage.  No one will be denied coverage because of pre-
existing conditions.  Literature is available at the North Plains Public Library, and free presentations and 
question/answer sessions are scheduled for the following days and times: 

 Q & A  Fri Nov 1  11 a.m.-2 p.m. Library 

 Presentation Wed Nov 6  7-8:30 p.m.  Jessie Mays Community Hall 

 Q & A  Thu Nov 7  11 a.m.-1 p.m. Library 

 Presentation Mon Nov 11 7-8:30 p.m.  Jessie Mays Community Hall 

 Q & A  Tue Nov 12 11 a.m.-2 p.m. Library 

 Presentation Sat Nov 23 1 – 2:30 p.m.  Jessie Mays Community Hall 
 
Bubble-Wrap Drive.  Members of the Friends of the Library are about to launch used book sales online 
through Amazon.  Hundreds of used books will be available.  To fill orders by mail, they will need LOTS of 
packing materials – specifically small-bubble-sized bubble-wrap.  Please bring your clean bubble-wrap 
donations (no tape attached to it) to the Jessie Mays Community Hall annex (just to the right/south of the 
main entrance).  You may simply put it through the slot to the right of the door to the annex - 24/7.  If you 
have a large amount of the small-bubble-sized bubble-wrap to donate, please contact the Library at 503-
647-5051, and we will make special arrangements for your delivery. This will be an ongoing need, year-
round. 
 
Artwork on Exhibit.  Local resident Carolyn Leavitt’s original cross stitch pieces will be featured during 
November and December.  Carolyn began doing cross stitch in 1990 when a friend gave her a small cross 
stitch kit.  She found it so relaxing and fun that she has continued to do cross stitch ever since.  Carolyn 
soon needed a bit more challenge than kits afforded, so she began creating her own patterns using 
Photoshop and similar software programs.  Most pieces use over 200 colors of thread.  Some are copies of 
famous art, some are taken from photos, and some are her own original art work.  A reception for Carolyn 
will be held on Friday, November 8 from 6 -7:30 p.m.  The public is invited to this free event, and 
refreshments will be served. 
 
Quilt Display.  The November quilt is a lovely fall design with a deep green border and yellow, cream, and 
orange squares.  This piece was made by Westside Quilters Guild member Julie Mason. 
 
Storytimes.  Children ages 0-6 are invited to participate every Wednesday at 11:30 a.m. in the children's 
section of the Library. 

 November 6  Storytime with Miss Marion:  Furry Friends 

 November 13 Storytime with Children’s Librarian Kay:  Birthdays 

 November 20 Special Guest Storytime:  Police Officer and K9 Dog 

 November 27 Special Guest Storytime:  Air Force/Airplanes with Captain Mark Brodie 
 
First Friday Flick.  Join us at the Library on November 1 at 6 p.m. to watch a popular G-rated Pixar/Disney 
film.  Ever since Mike was a little monster, he has dreamed of becoming a professional Scarer, but at college 
he soon crosses paths with "Sulley" and the competition becomes fierce.  Learn how they overcome their 
differences to be the best of friends.  Seating is limited.  Refreshments will be served. 
 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 31 of 33



LEGO Bricks Drive.  Library Staff and Volunteers will soon be hosting LEGO building events at the Jessie 
Mays Community Hall for children and teens, and we are currently seeking donations of LEGOS.  Please 
help us get started by giving us your no-longer-wanted Legos and/or by purchasing new LEGOS to 
contribute.  Both small- and large-sized LEGOS are needed.  A donation box will be placed near the Library 
entry door beginning November 1.  Upcoming Lego events will be planned and published as soon as there 
are enough materials.  Thank you! 
 
Read to the Dogs.  First graders and up can gain confidence reading aloud to Taylor, a volunteer pet-
therapy dog.  Taylor and his owner Ben Benally are a registered team with Pet Partners.  This free program 
offers a friendly, non-judgmental environment for young readers to practice their reading skills.  This 
program takes place on the first Wednesday of every month from 3-5 p.m. and will occur on November 6.  
Reservations are required.  Sign up for a 20-minute time slot by calling the Library at 503-647-5051. 
 
Writers’ Group.  Share your writing projects and receive feedback from peers on Thursday, November 7 
at 6:30 p.m.  New members are welcome to join.  (This is not a teacher/trainer-led class.) 
 
Super Saturday – Fun with Yarns.  On November 9 at 1 p.m. at Jessie Mays Community Hall, come 
enjoy a hands-on event with Meredith Bach who will show how yarn, thread, cord, rope, and other long, 
stringy materials are created from animal fleece and fibers.  Try your skill at making two-ply handspun yarn, 
and work in teams to make yarn on a drop spindle.  Then do some finger-crocheting to fashion a necklace 
or bracelet to take home.  All ages and skill levels are welcome to attend this free event. 
 
LAIKA Animation Event on No-School Day.  Teens (6th graders through High School), be sure to put 
Tuesday, November 19 on your calendars!  Mark Shapiro will join us from LAIKA, the animation company 
specializing in feature films, commercials, and short films using stop-motion photography.  He will present 
behind-the-scenes imagery and rare time-lapse footage that will describe the major details involved in 
making an animated feature film - breathing life into puppets in 24 frames per second.  Shapiro will talk 
about Moongirl (2005), about the two Oscar-nominated features ParaNorman (2012) and Coraline (2009), 
and about the upcoming film, The Boxtrolls, which will debut in theaters in September 2014.  This free event 
for teens will take place at the Jessie Mays Community Hall beginning at 3 p.m. 
 
Library Book Club.  Flight Behavior by Barbara Kingsolver will be discussed on Thursday, November 21.  
Tired of living on a failing farm and suffering oppressive poverty, bored housewife Dellarobia Turnbow, on 
the way to meet a potential lover, is detoured by a miraculous event on the Appalachian mountainside that 
ignites a media and religious firestorm that changes her life forever. 
This meeting will begin at 7:00 p.m. at the Library.  New members are welcome to attend.  Refreshments 
will be served. 
 
Donate to the Holiday Craft Faire.  If you knit, crochet, or handcraft other items, you are invited to donate 
your wares to be sold at the annual Holiday Craft Faire held throughout the month of December at the 
Library.  Donations may be brought to the Library on November 29 and 30, and the sale will begin on 
Monday December 2.  Proceeds from the sale will go toward the purchase of new books and DVDs for the 
North Plains Public Library. 
 
Save the Date – Friday, January 17.  A North Plains’ evening of fabulous conversation with special guests, 
wine, and poetry will highlight the statewide Oregon Reads 2014 celebration of the life and works of poet 
laureate William Stafford. 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 32 of 33



November 2013 Council Calendar 
 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

City Council Tuesday 7:00 p.m. 11/04 

Veteran’s Day (City Offices and Library closed)  11/11 

Washington County Coordinating 
Committee (WCCC) 

Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 11/11 

Planning Commission Kindel  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 11/13 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development: Policy 
Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 11/14 

Senior Center Holiday Bazaar   
North Plains Senior Center 
9:00-3:00  

11/16 

City Council 7:00 p.m. 11/18 

Library Board Lenahan  3rd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 11/20 

Dance    Jessie Mays @ 7:30 p.m. 11/23 

Playdate    Jessie Mays 1:30-4:00 p.m. 11/24 

Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC) 

Hatcher Newton 4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 11/27 

Parks Board   4th Wednesday @ 6:30 p.m. 11/27 

Thanksgiving Holiday (City Offices and Library closed)  11/28 

Thanksgiving Holiday (City Offices and Library closed)  11/29 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

Warren Lenahan   

Northwest Oregon Area 
Commission on Transportation 
(NWACT) 

Lenahan DeBry   

 

Agenda Item: 12B 

__________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
Page 33 of 33


	4A 110413 Preliminary Agenda
	4A 102113 Minutes
	6 Proclamation Eagle Scouts and Wascoe Street Project
	8A Memo Discussion of Pacific Street Congestion Issues
	8Ab Notice to Property Owners and Residents Congestion issues Pacific Street
	8B Memo Business License Fees Resolution 1804
	8B Resolution No. 1804 - Suspension of business license setup fee license fee
	8C Memo City Costs Police Reserve Memo
	8D Memo Gift Certificates to staff for Holidays
	8D Resolution No. 1805 Gift Cards for paid staff for Holidays
	9A Memo Progress on draft City Policies
	9B Memo Property acquisition
	11a Police Dept October 2013 report
	11ab Police Community Contacts October
	11b Public Works Oct 30 2013 Report
	11c Library Director Report to City Council 2013 11-04
	12B November 2013 Council Calendar



